1953

J. M. Palmer et al v. L. V. Broadbent : Plaintiffs' Brief

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an action for a Writ of Mandamus to be issued out of this court in the exercise of its original jurisdiction. The general authority for such a writ is Rule 65B (3) of the Rules of Civil Procedure and the specific authority for this particular type of action is set forth in Section 20-11-16, Utah Code Ann. 1953.

The petition for the writ, including all of the attached exhibits filed in this court generally set forth the facts involved in this case. Some facts as are seriously in issue have been settled by the stipulation of the parties which is on file herein.

On February 19, 1953 the City Council of Cedar City, Utah duly passed an ordinance granting to Southern Utah Power Company a twenty year electric franchise within Cedar City, Utah. This ordinance which is set forth as Petitioners' Exhibit "A" was published February 26 and by its terms would become effective March 21, 1953. On March 7, 1953 nine residents of Cedar City, Utah who acted as "sponsors" filed an application for petition copies with the City Recorder in order to have petitions printed so that the ordinance could be referred to the people for their approval or rejection at the next city election. Five copies of the proposed Petition for Referendum were filed with the application and the application was duly verified as provided by law. Upon the filing, the City Recorder gave a receipt therefor and also signed a certificate that the petition following was a true and correct copy. The sponsors then had the petitions and circulation sheets printed up themselves at the Iron County Record, a publishing and printing company of Cedar City, Utah. There were printed up fifteen sections of the petition, with each section having a cover sheet of the Referendum Petition, together with the printed certificate of the City Recorder, and also six circulation sheets attached. On March 10, 1953 after the petitions had been printed by the sponsors, all fifteen sections were taken to the City Recorder for her inspection and for her to sign her name in ink over her printed signature and to

attach the corporate seal of Cedar City Corporation. This she declined to do and on March 12 notified the sponsors that the fifteen sections of the petition could be obtained at her office but that that they would not be signed and sealed by her. They were later received back by the sponsors, unsigned but since the City Recorder had notified the sponsors that she would not sign them, the sponsors, who had had printed originally sufficient petitions and circulation sheets for fifteen additional identical sections, commenced the circulation of the petition in Cedar City, Utah, and 449 signatures were obtained.

The fifteen sections were then taken to the County Clerk of Iron County, Utah on March 20, 1953 for checking against his official registration list of registered and qualified voters in Cedar City, Utah. He duly certified that in 1952 at the general election, 3122 persons of all parties voted for all candidates for Governor in Cedar City, Utah and that the Referendum Petition presented to him for checking had the names of 430 duly registered and qualified voters of Cedar City, Utah. The Clerk also certified as shown in Exhibit "E" that 430 qualified and registered voters appeared on the petition and that he had placed a check mark before each name of a qualified and registered voter. Actually the check marks were placed after the name and there were 430 such checked names. The County Clerk subsequently on March 27, 1953 certified as shown in Exhibit "E-1" that actually he had placed the check mark (✓) after the name and that those not so checked with the check mark (✓) did not appear to be duly registered. There were 19 of these names.

On March 20, 1953 during the afternoon of said day, which was a day before the franchise ordinance would have become effective, all fifteen sections of the Referendum Petition, together with the County Clerk's certificates, were delivered to the City Recorder's office in the County Clerk's sealed envelope. On March 24, 1953 the sponsors were notified that the City Recorder had

found the petition insufficient for the reason that it carried NO names of registered voters. According to Section 20-11-22, Utah Code Ann. 1953, the required number of signers of a referendum petition in Cedar City, Utah based upon the vote in 1952 for Governor would be 390 names. The County Clerk has certified that there were 430 names of registered and qualified voters on the petition.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

1. The Referendum Petition, although printed and paid for by the sponsors themselves is entirely legal and proper and would have to be accepted by the City Recorder provided it carried the required number of qualified signers.
2. That the Referendum Petition circulated was duly certified to and the fact that each section of the petition was not signed in the hand-writing of the City Recorder cannot be relied upon by the defendants as any defense.
3. Any deficiencies in the County Clerk's Certificate as to how the names of the registered voters were checked is immaterial, particularly in view of the fact the clerical error was corrected and in any event, the sponsors were not notified of any deficiency until it was too late to correct it.

ARGUMENT

The procedure for direct legislation, or Initiative and Referendum, is set out in Title 20, Chapter 11, Utah Code Ann. 1953. The right of direct legislation is probably one of the most fundamental rights of the people under democratic government. In fact this right is preserved by our State Constitution at Article VI, Section 1. Direct legislation by Initiative and Referendum by the people is actually encouraged in our governmental and judicial system because in the last analysis, all governmental power still resides in the people. Although Chap-

ter 11 of Title 20 sets out the procedure, it is clear from reading the chapter and also from several decisions handed down by this court, that many of the requirements are matters of form only and are directory and are not to interfere with the rights of the people to vote in direct legislation elections. The general rule of law is that these statutes should be liberally construed so as to preserve this valuable right and this court in the case of *Halgren vs. Welling*, 63 Pac. 2nd. 550 and *Allen vs. Rasmussen*, 117 Pac. 2nd. 287 has adhered to this general rule. The reasons are aptly given in the *Halgren* case; to quote.

“The right of direct legislation is in the people. It is the duty of officers charged with administration matters relating to the Initiative and Referendum Law to make it effective and operative if possible. Technical and restrictive constructions placed upon such laws would tend to defeat the purpose and policies governing the submission of such measures to the people for adoption. With the best safeguards that can be thrown around the preparation, circulation, assembling, and submitting of petitions relating to the Initiative or Referendum Law, inaccuracies, and at times technical departures from prescribed forms, are likely to occur. The rigid application of technical constructions relating to the law, if made by officers charged with the administration thereof, may effectively defeat the purposes of the law. Officers should interpret the law, if possible, so as to sustain it and make its purposes effective, and bring about the purposes intended by the legislature. As heretofore indicated, the forms prescribed are not mandatory, and if they are substantially followed the petition should be held to be sufficient notwithstanding merely technical errors as to form.”

There is one unfortunate feature in Chapter 11 of Title 20 in that the entire act is drawn primarily for Initiative measures, as distinguished from merely local Referendums of City Ordinances. Since a statewide Initi-

ative is a considerable undertaking on the part of a group of citizens who usually have no personal motive or nothing to gain by the action and would be at considerable expense, in fact so much that in many instances the cost would discourage the use of the direct legislative machinery, the statute has attempted to make the procedure within the financial reach of all. Section 20-11-13 provides that when an application for Petition copies is filed, the Secretary of State shall within ten days solicit "bids from not less than three competent printers for the printing of the petitions." The Secretary of State shall notify the sponsors within the ten days of the lowest and best bid and request the cost to be paid to him by the sponsors. The printing is to be in six point type which is admittedly quite small, but this surely is only to keep the cost of printing down. Within ten days after the cost of printing is received from the sponsors, the Secretary of State is to have the petitions and circulation sheets printed and bound and ready for delivery to the sponsors. The provisions of this particular section are obviously only directory and for the protection of the sponsors themselves. In a statewide initiative procedure, where a lengthy law is proposed, it is conceivable that the cost of printing the sufficient petitions could run into hundreds of dollars and this statute is obviously enacted to keep the cost to a minimum. Chapter 20, Section 21 provides that cities and towns may adopt the statewide procedure and in such cases, the City Recorder performs the functions of the Secretary of State.

In this particular case, instead of having a statewide initiative measure, we have only a local city referendum. The printing cost is a minor item and since the statute in question is only for the protection of the sponsors themselves, they could waive it if they so chose. It is elementary that any person or group can waive a contract provision or statute which is entirely for their own protection if other rights are not involved. On this point 56 Am. Jur. Page 109 provides:

"Statutory rights may be waived or surrendered

in whole or in part by the party to whom or for whose benefit they are given, if he does not thereby destroy the rights, and benefits flowing to another . . . ”

Since the sponsors have to pay the cost of printing in any event, regardless of what the cost may be, and no part comes from public funds, it would make no difference if the city or the sponsors printed up the petitions. It is submitted that the statutory procedure is only set out as a guide to get the work done and to make it as cheap for the sponsors as possible. Surely the City Recorder or city officials would have no cause to complain if the sponsors handled this themselves, so long as it was done according to law.

To further show that the failure of the city to have these petitions printed is a matter of minor importance is the fact that the City Recorder in fact did solicit bids for the printing and received only one bid, one from the printing firm which had previously printed them. It is of interest to note that the City Recorder sent out the request for bids on the same day the printed petitions were presented to her for signature. The petitioners contend that this is truly being a slave to the statute. It is of further interest to note that the bid actually received from the one printer was in the small sum of \$8.65 and it is submitted that the payment of this small sum by the nine sponsors would not and did not strain their finances. If the City had been prejudiced in any way by the printing of this petition by the sponsors themselves and paying for its cost, then the situation might be different.

Since the City could in no way be prejudiced by the fact that the sponsors immediately went ahead with the printing upon filing the application with the City Recorder, waiting for a possible twenty days for the printed petitions to be delivered to them by the City Recorder would be needless and foolish to say the least. Under the statute, the City Recorder could have taken a minimum of twenty days to get this all done and since the petitions as actually printed conform to the law in every way,

except possibly the fact that they were printed in 5½ point type instead of 6 point type, which objection is entirely groundless, no one has any right now to complain.

At this point attention should be called to one glaring deficiency in the direct legislation statute, which is the shortness of time for a referendum petition to be filed, particularly on a city ordinance. Initiative creates no problem as it can be done at any time but a city referendum petition must be filed before the ordinance becomes effective which is by law twenty days after publication or thirty days after passage, whichever of said days is the most remote from final passage. In this instance there was only the thirty days from passage which would be March 21, 1953. If the sponsors must file their application for petitions and wait for a possible twenty days before they can start circulating their petition, in many cases there would be no referendum at all because an unfriendly City Recorder can take the full time allowed by law and there would be little if any time to circulate, check and file the petition. It must be admitted that occasions when opponents of a city measure can file an application for a petition, immediately after the passage of the act are rare. A committee must first organize and this normally would take several days. Furthermore, the City Recorder could if she so desired, wait for ten days or longer before he delivered the adopted ordinance to a publisher for publishing, in which event there would be only twenty days in which opponents could organize, file an application for petition copies and have them printed, circulated and checked and filed and as noted, under the procedure the city recorder can legally take at least twenty days to get this done if she so desires, leaving no time to obtain any signatures.

It is true as pointed out in the case of *Allen vs. Rasmussen*, *supra*, when this shortness of time in a city referendum was considered by this court, the court remarked that it could not be said that the sponsors could not have sufficient time, but the point which the petitioners wish to make is this—in view of the general rule of

law that these statutes should be liberally construed, is it more important to follow the statute strictly even on immaterial and directory matters than it is to afford the citizenry of the right to vote on measures? It most certainly would be wrong to have an unco-operative City Recorder or City Administration foil an attempt to question a city measure by merely taking the time allowed by law, but this could be done in many instances.

It is admittedly disturbing to the writer that cases cannot be found in the reports in which sponsors of a referendum petition did not want to wait on the public official to have the printing done, but did it and paid for it themselves. It appears to the writer that the question is so obvious that no case has been tried and appealed where this situation was involved. There is one Arizona case, however, that of *Kerby vs. Griffin* 62 Pac. 2nd 1131 where a related problem arose. In that case an initiative petition had been filed with the Secretary of State. Under the Arizona law, as in ours, the Secretary of State had the duty of printing up and mailing out publicity pamphlets for and against the measure and this had to be done within a certain time before election. In this case, the defendant Secretary of State maintained that the reason he had not complied with the law was because as the law was written, there was not sufficient time to comply, particularly when he would have to solicit bids for the printing of the pamphlet and then get it printed and mailed. Soliciting of bids for the printing was not directly required in the Arizona Initiative and Referendum law. The Arizona court said that although the practice of soliciting bids on state printing was commendable and under all ordinary circumstances should be done, still, where it interfered with the getting of the direct legislation question before the people, it should be by all means dispensed with. And in this instance, public funds were being used for the printing of this pamphlet and not private funds from the sponsors themselves, as in the present case.

There are cases in which certain requirements of

the statute have not been complied with but the writer has found none on the specific question here involved. In the case of *Halgren vs. Welling*, *Supra*, there were many irregularities pointed out and the court said they were merely matters of form and were disregarded.

Therefore, it would seem that the fact that the sponsors handled and paid for their own printing is immaterial in this case for two reasons, (1) that the statute is for the protection of the sponsors themselves and they could waive if they so desired and (2) this is only a directory requirement and not mandatory and to hold that it is mandatory would require a useless act and would prohibit, in many cases the use of our direct legislation statute.

The second point raised by the answer of the defendants is the fact that the petition circulated did not have a certified copy of the referendum petition attached thereto. Section 20-11-12 and 20-11-13 Utah Code Ann. 1953 provide that the petition for circulation can be divided into sections but that each section of circulations sheets must have attached a certified copy of the referendum petition. This is only as it should be because it would be wrong for circulators of the petition to merely take around circulation sheets asking people to sign without the signers knowing what they were signing. It is common knowledge that people will sign any kind of petition or anything requested of them and the statute requires that a copy of the petition must be attached to each section. Defendants appear to be raising the question that the copies were not properly certified and by this it is presumed that they mean that each certificate attached to the petition was not signed in ink over the printed signature of the City Recorder and because such was not the case, the petitions were not certified. Each bore the printed name of the Recorder and she had previously signed a certificate that the petition was a true and correct copy of the petition filed with her and this certificate is before the Court as Petitioner's Exhibit "H". The petitioners maintain, that this signing was not necessary in order to have a certified copy of the petition

with each section circulated. The Recorder had in fact signed such a certificate and the petition copies were as they are designated, "petition copies". Furthermore, no claim is made that the form or substance of the petition would in any way mislead any signer and if a signer was willing to sign the petition as presented to him and which is before the court, no one would have any cause to complain.

It should also be noted that there is no allegation of fraud or wrongdoing on the part of the sponsors in circulating the petition. The ordinance asked to be referred is correctly described on the face of the petition and there is no claim that signers did not have full knowledge of what they were requesting the City Officials to do. It is submitted that the very form of the petition circulated speaks for itself as to its full validity.

Defendants appear to be making capital of the fact that the petitions signed were not the ones presented to the City Recorder for her signing, sealing and inspection. Actually they were not but were identical copies as they were all printed up at the same time and this could not possibly make any difference. Furthermore, there is no claim on the part of the defendants there was any difference or that the sponsors wrongfully substituted something else. At any rate, the sections originally delivered to the Recorder for signing and sealing were actually returned unsealed and unsigned so that they were identical in every way with the ones circulated.

But it ill-behooves the defendants to now assert that the petitions were not signed by the Recorder, or numbered or authorized by her. After the petitions and circulation sheets had been printed by the sponsors according to the statutes they were in fact presented to the Recorder for her inspection and for the express purpose of having her sign them in ink and to affix the corporate seal. This she declined to do and returned the petitions unsigned. The defendants certainly cannot now be heard to complain that other identical copies were circulated or that they were not signed in ink.

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