1953

J. M. Palmer et al v. L. V. Broadbent : Defendants' Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

1. It is a well established rule established over a long period that "Mandamus will issue only where there is a clear right to the relief sought and a clear duty of performance resting on the one whom it is sought to compel to do the act." This is upheld in the Utah cases decided by the Supreme Court of the State of Utah over a considerable period of time. A few of the Utah Authorities on this item are as follows: Board of Education of Ogden City vs. Anderson, 74 Pac. (2d) 681, 93 Utah 522 which holds as follows:

The right to require a person or a court to proceed and legal duty to do so must be free from doubt, oth-

erwise remedy by writ of Mandamus must be denied. *Colorado Development Co. vs. Creer*, 80 Pac. (2d) 685, 96, Utah 1 holds as follows:

In Mandamus, the plaintiff must show plain right for which the law gives no adequate remedy, except Mandamus, and duty in defendants to perform a ministerial act, including a showing of authority, ability and means to perform that act.

Harris vs. Turner, 85 Pac. (2d) 824, 96 Utah 342 holds: Whenever action by a court or other officer is sought to be compelled by Mandamus, it must be shown that there is a clear legal duty to act as requested, free from doubt, imperative, and without discretion to act or refuse.

This view is upheld by neighboring jurisdictions in the following cases *Grable vs. Childers*, 56 Pac. (2d) 357, 176 Okl. 360; *McDonald vs. Pritzl*, 93 Pac. (2d) 11, 60 Idaho 354; *State ex rel. Conklin vs. Buckingham*, 83 Pac. (2d) 462, 58 Nevada 450; and *State ex rel. Moore vs. Nan Tassel Real Estate & Livestock Co.*, 79 Pac. (2d) 276, 53 Wyo. 89

In the present case being considered there is no showing of any right for the relief sought nor is there any showing of any duty of performance resting on the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah or any other official of Cedar City, Utah.

2. The facts as stipulated and the law governing Referendum Petitions in cities in the state of Utah show definitely that the instrument presented to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah on 20 March, 1953, alleged to be a Referendum Petition, was of no force or effect whatsoever and placed no duty upon the City Recorder of Cedar City or any other official of Cedar City, Utah.

The basic law in the state of Utah stems from Article VI, Section 1, Subsection 2 of the Constitution of the State of Utah which clearly places upon the legislature of the state of Utah a duty to state what percentage of the people of a city may initiate a Referendum on an Ordinance of said city and also places a duty on said legis-

lature to state the manner and time in which said Referendum may be had. In response to this Constitutional Requirement the legislature has enacted Chapter 11, Title 20 of the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, consisting of 25 sections which is the law as required by said constitutional provision that states the proportion of the people that may cause a referendum of a city Ordinance and the time and manner in which same can be performed. The Sponsors have stated in their brief to the effect that this is very unsatisfactory legislation concerning this matter of Referendum in cities. However there is no question to the effect that this is not the legislation that governs Referendum in cities and while the Sponsors in the case at hand may not approve of the legislation never the less said Sponsors, and the City Officials of Cedar City, Utah, are admittedly bound by this legislation, and must conform to this legislation for a Referendum and are not allowed to initiate a proceeding of their own for this matter.

Our basic law is well settled to the effect that there is no authority for Initiative and Referendum procedures in cities except as stated by Constitution, Statute, or Charter. It is also well settled that where so stated by Constitution, Statute, or Charter, that the Initiative and Referendum procedure therein stated is exclusive and Mandatory. For the basic law on this matter see 43 Corpus Juris, at page 583, Section 946. ORDINANCES UNDER INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM LAWS, and continuing sections thereafter, as follows:

Section 948. Source of Power. Unless authorized by organic law or by charter or general statute, a municipal council is without authority to pass ordinances providing for a referendum of any kind.

Section 950. Method of Exercising Power. The method of exercising initiative and referendum powers must conform to, and comply with, the mode presented in the constitution or statute conferring the power.

Section 956. Petition, in General. The petition must

comply in all respects with the statutory requirements, which are construed as being mandatory. A petition which measures up to this standard is sufficient.

Section 956. Amendments. An insufficient petition for a referendum cannot be amended after the ordinance has gone into effect, and does not necessarily operate to suspend the ordinance.

Section 959. Time of Filing. After the time limited for filing a petition has expired a defective petition cannot be amended and such amendments are of no effect to suspend the ordinance.

In view of this the action of Sponsors in entirely ignoring the statutory procedure and initiating a procedure that substantially differs from that set forth in the statute that produced an unofficial document of no force or effect whatsoever. As a matter of fact that Sponsors waited until they had only 14 days in which to accomplish the statutory procedure and then violated the mandatory statutory procedures in substantial ways and have now brought this mandamus proceeding asking the Supreme Court of the state of Utah to require the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah to endorse a referendum procedure that materially differs with mandatory statutory requirements and place on a ballot a Unofficial Referendum. In view of the long established authority that these statutory proceedings are mandatory there can be no conclusion on this matter except to deny the Petition and order the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah not to put said Unofficial Referendum on the ballot.

That the procedure of the Sponsors did not substantially comply with the statutes of the state of Utah cannot be denied by the Sponsors. After presenting to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah, their Application for Petition Copies specifically requesting that the statute be complied with the Sponsors apparently immediately ordered printed their own version of the Petition. On 10 March, 1953 this was presented to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah for signature. She took time to obtain

legal counsel on this matter and without waiting for her decision the Sponsors commenced circulation of a spurious and unofficial document that the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah had never seen and had never had the opportunity to see. At this point an unanswered question that this writer has it this, "If the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah had signed the matters presented to her, how would the Sponsors have gotten the signature they had already obtained upon the circulation sheets attached to the Petition Copies signed by the City Recorder?" Of course this answer lies with the Sponsors and not with this writer, but the Sponsors have stipulated that they circulated the sheets presented to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah on 20th March, 1953 prior to the receipt of notice from the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah that the items left with her on 10 March, 1953 would not be signed. If the Sponsors had not commenced the circulation for signatures of some unofficial document prior to the receipt of notice that the alleged copies left with the City Recorder on 10 March, 1953 would not be signed they should have brought an action for Mandamus at that time. The Supreme Court of the State of Utah has so held in the case of Coleman vs. Bench, 84 Pac. (2d) 412, 96 Utah 1943 as follows:

The processes of initiation and referendum are exposed to act of judiciary at certain points along the way because they are not in control of a single agency, but depend on certain ministerial officers doing their duty, and, therefore, resort may be had to judiciary for mandamus for purpose of enforcing processes of initiation which might not be enforced in any other way.

This writer cannot understand the total disregard of the Sponsors for commencing circulation for signature of unofficial spurious documents without waiting for the decision of the City Recorder, and certainly had they waited for the decision of the City Recorder and had been unsatisfied with said decision their remedy should have been a resort to mandamus at that time and not the cir-

ulation of unofficial, uncertified, spurious documents of no legal effect whatsoever.

But the fact of the matter is that the Sponsors condoned and approved the action of the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah and continued the circulation of said unofficial, uncertified, spurious documents of no legal effect whatsoever and presented to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah on 20 March, 1953 a document which said Sponsors allege to be a good and sufficient Referendum Petition even though it had never been previously seen by the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah, and even though she had never had an opportunity to see said document and even though she had never had an opportunity to do those things by law required of her to be done in connection with a Petition for Referendum.

Therefore the questions actually before the court are not concerning the action of the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah in connection with the matters presented to her on 10 March, 1953 but are questions concerning the validity of the document presented to said City Recorder on 20 March, 1953 and its sufficiency as a Petition for Refendum.

The defendants contend that same was not a valid Document and that same was insufficient for a Petition for Referendum for the following reasons:

I. Their is no question but that the Constitution of the State of Utah and Chapter 11 of Title 20 of U.C.A. 1953 control this matter. The previously cited matters in Corpus Juris state the existing law in relation to substantial compliance with the law being mandatory This has been upheld in the case of Allen vs. Rasmussen, City Recorder, 117 Pac. (2d) 287, as follows:

This is so because while, Section 25-10-23 (now 20-11-23) prescribes that the manner of exercising the referendum powers reserved to the people of cities and towns shall be "similar" to the procedure prescribed for state initiative and referendum the deviation, if any other than that elsewhere expressed in the statute, which might be suggested by the use of the

word "similiar", is limited by the other provision of such section wherein is expressed legislative intention to make the procedure in referring a municipal ordinance "as nearly as practicable" the same as that prescribed for reference of an act of the legislature.

This very definitely established that substantial compliance with the statutes of the state of Utah is required for the production of an effective Referendum Petition.

II. In the case at hand the Provisions of Law relating to Referendum Procedure, and the Conditions precedent to the Acceptance, by the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah, of the Alleged Petition copies had not been complied with in the following particulars:

A. The Alleged Petition Copies presented to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah had never been printed under the authority or directions of the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah as required by law.

Section 20-11-13, U.C.A. 1953 puts a number of duties on the City Recorder in a City Referendum, to-wit: to determine the number of petition copies desired, to determine the number of circulation sheets required, solicit bids from not less than three competent printers for the petition copies and circulation sheets and for the printing of the certificate that the title of the ordinance contained thereon is the true and correct number of the title of this law as proposed for referendum, notification of the lowest and best bid received, the payment of the bid for the printing of the petition copies and of the sum of 50 cents per hundred for the circulation sheets, making up the petition copies. Of the items thus required of the City Recorder not one had been performed by the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah on the spurious and unofficial document delivered to her office by the Sponsors on 20 March, 1953. Certainly the Sponsors do not contend that this section of the law has been substantially complied with. Certainly leaving of the certificate required by this section is not substantial compliance with the law on this matter. In this section of the statute there is

shown a legislative intent that a person asked to sign a petition may have the assurance that same is the correct number and title of the Ordinance. Can this assurance be given if the certificate to this effect is left off entirely.

Sponsors contend that they have the right to have these petition copies printed to suit themselves. Is that the legislative intent of the statutes on this matter? Do these statutes at any place state to the effect that if the Sponsors sleep on their rights until such time as the time is very short on this matter then and in that case they may bypass the statute and prepare some document to their own satisfaction and then circulate same and represent that it is an official act of the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah and that same is an official Document? Certainly this action was not the intent of the legislature at the time the statute was adopted nor is it the intent of Article VI, Section 1 of the Constitution of the State of Utah.

In their brief the Sponsors contend that that portion of the statute requiring the bids is for their protection. Is that the case. Sponsors cite 56 Am. Jur. Page 109 for their authority in this matter. Continuing the citation of the Sponsors we find as follows:

Because requirements of a statute enacted for the public good may not be nullified or varied by private contract, the donee of a private right created by statute for the public good does not have the legal power to make an anticipant waiver of such right. 56 Am. Jur. 115. Intention to Relinquish. A prerequisite ingredient of the waiver of a right or privilege consists of an intention to relinquish it. No man can be bound by a waiver of his rights, unless such waiver is distinctly made, with full knowledge of the rights which he intends to waive and that fact that he knows his rights, and intends to waive them, must plainly appear. As in other situations the question whether waiver will be found in any particular case depends not upon the secret information of the party against whom it is asserted, but upon the effect

which his conduct has had upon the other party. There is no waiver unless the waiver is so intended by one party and so accepted by the other.

Can it be said that the Sponsors had any rights in this matter that they could waive. Certainly if they had any rights that they might waive the delivery to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah of a written application for Petition Copies in conformity with the law cannot now be construed as an intention to waive any rights under the law. Also if the Sponsors had any rights in this matter they must of necessity be a right in connection with a public good and cannot be waived therefor. Thus the statement of the Sponsors to the effect that they waived their rights, if any, after failing to comply with the statute in a substantial manner, after requesting the City Recorder, in writing, to comply with said statute seems to present the Sponsors in inconsistent positions. Can any person request that a law be complied with, then fail to substantially comply with the same law and make substantial changes in the contents of the item they have just requested be furnished to them in compliance with the law, and then take the position that they have waived their rights? Or is compliance with the law to be deemed a matter of convenience.

B. The Alleged Petition Copies that were circulated for signatures were never signed by, or issued by the City Recorder as required by law, and no record thereof was kept in the City Recorder's office, and said Alleged Petition Copies and circulation sheets were wholly unofficial and void.

The Sponsors have stipulated that the items presented to the City Recorder of Cedar City, Utah had never been previously seen by her, or previously presented to her. Is this substantial compliance with the statute. Did the statute intend that the City Recorder should prepare these petition Copies, and circulation sheets, and keep a record of them, and have them go out for signature as official documents under her certificate and seal or did the statute intend that any one that felt so inclined

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